
 

 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Regular Meeting  
April 7, 2016  

7:00 PM 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular City Council Meeting will be held on Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 
7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda 
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene 
into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any 
item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  
By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to 
speak at the City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council 
cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible 
inclusion on a future agenda. 

 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest  
 
Presentation of Proclamation to the Blacksheep Motorcycle Club declaring the month of May as 
Motorcycle Awareness Month. (Mayor Jim Olk) 



 
Consent Agenda 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single 
vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 17, 2016 City Council meeting. (City 

Secretary Stacy Henderson) 

Public Hearings 
 
4. Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00835 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances, 

Section 14.01.004, Subsection B, Definitions creating a new definition for Nursing Home 
Facility. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

 
 A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 B. Conduct Public Hearing 
 C. Take Action 

Regular Agenda 
 
5. Consider the request by James Roberts on behalf of Logan Ford Ranch Estates for 

preliminary plat approval, being a replat of Lot 1 of Ford’s Cattle Ranch totaling 69.019 
acres with Phase 1 consisting of 11 lots, containing 31.897 acres with one remaining lot of 
37.122 acres. The property is located at the northeast corner of East Winningkoff Road and 
Welborn Lane. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

 
6. Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00836 amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 

3, Section 3.01.011 Construction Site Maintenance to provide regulations for roll-off 
containers used on construction sites. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

 
7. Consider calling a special City Council meeting for the purpose of canvassing the May 7, 

2016 election results. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson) 

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
8.  Executive Session:  An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
9. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on April 1, 2016.   

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

April 7, 2016 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
 Citizen Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
  NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

April 7, 2016 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Items of Community Interest:   
 
Presentation of Proclamation to the Blacksheep Motorcycle Club declaring the month of May as 
Motorcycle Awareness Month. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  

 



   
PPPrrroooccc lll aaammmaaattt iii ooonnn   

of the City of Lucas 
 

WHEREAS, today’s society is finding more citizens involved in motorcycling on the roads of our 
country; and 
 
WHEREAS, motorcyclists are roughly unprotected and therefore more prone to injury or death in a 
crash than other vehicle drivers; and 
 
WHEREAS, campaigns have helped inform riders and motorists alike on motorcycle safety issues to 
reduce motorcycle related risks, injuries, and, most of all, fatalities, though a comprehensive approach 
to motorcycle safety; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of all who put themselves behind the wheel, to become aware of 
motorcyclists, regarding them with the same respect as any other vehicle traveling the highways of this 
country; and it is the responsibility of riders and motorists alike to obey all traffic laws and safety rules; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, all citizens of our community to become aware of the inherent danger involved in 
operating a motorcycle, and for riders and motorists alike to give each other the mutual respect they 
deserve;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas do hereby proclaim the month of May, 
2016 as  

Motorcycle Safety and Awareness Month 
 
Given under my hand and seal of office this 7th day of April, 2016. 
 
 
SIGNED: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jim Olk 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson 
City Secretary 

  

 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

April 7, 2016 
 

 
Agenda Item:  
 
Consent Agenda: 
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 17, 2016 City Council meeting.  
 
Background Information: 
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the March 17, 2016 City Council meeting  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
 
Motion: 
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the consent agenda as presented.  

 



1 
 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

March 17, 2016 
7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas  
 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Council Members Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap  
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke  
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher (arrived at 7:05pm) 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Finance Director Liz Exum  
 
Staff Absent:  
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 

 
Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence 
their cell phones and the City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 
 
Tommy Tolson, 1855 Crestland Drive, Lucas expressed his appreciation to the City Council for 
the Blondy Jhune bridge project criteria that was recently approved and further discussed the 
need for road maintenance and repair on existing streets within the City.  
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest Items.  
 
Mayor Olk announced that Keep Lucas Beautiful was hosting a clean-up event on April 2, 2016 
at 9:00 a.m. at City Hall and encouraged others to participate.   

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 3, 2016 City Council meeting.  
 



2 
 

4. Consider approving Resolution R2016-03-00447 of the City of Lucas, Texas opposing 
a limited access roadway described as a north-south corridor west of Lavon and 
providing an effective date.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Millsap 

to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 
7 to 0 vote.  

Regular Agenda 
 
5. Consider approving the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

(CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 presented by BrooksCardiel, PLLC. 
 
Anthony Cardiel with BrooksCardiel, PLLC presented the findings from the City of Lucas 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report stating the City had received an unmodified status 
which was the best rating possible.  Mr. Cardiel also discussed the City’s revenues, expenses and 
internal controls in place.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Fisher to approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 
2014-2015.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Consider appointments to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue Board to serve for one 

to two year terms.  
 
Mayor Olk asked that the citizens that had applied to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue Board 
come forward and introduce themselves to the City Council.  
 
The following citizens came forward and discussed their business background, volunteer 
experience and reasons for wanting to be considered for the open board member positions:  
 
Kathleen LoSapio, 650 Scarlett Drive, Lucas 
Jim Smith, 700 Scarlett, Lucas 
Paul Rathgeb, 10 Rollingwood Drive, Lucas 
Larry Abston, 4 Estates Road, Lucas 
Linda Abston, 4 Estates Road, Lucas  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Fisher 

to appoint Paul Rathgeb for a two year term to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-
Rescue Board.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to appoint Grant Gulickson for a two year term to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-
Rescue Board.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 



3 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Baney 
to appoint Kathleen Losapio for a one year term to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-
Rescue Board.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Lawrence to appoint Jim Smith for a one 

year term to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue Board.  The motion failed for 
lack of a second.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to appoint Linda Abston for a one year term to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-
Rescue Board.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Councilmember Millsap noted that a Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue Board meeting would be 
scheduled within the next 30 days. 
 
7. Consider an appointment to the Board of Adjustment for a vacant board member 

position.  
 
The City Council promoted Alternate Member 1 Adam Sussman to a Regular voting member 
and promoted Alternate Member 2 Tommy Tolson to the position of Alternate Member 1.  
Thereby leaving an Alternate 2 position vacant.  
 
The City Council conducted interviews in November 2015 for vacant Board of Adjustment 
member positions at that time. The City Council was in agreement to appoint an applicant that 
was interviewed during that time.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Mayor Olk to appoint 

Robin Ahmadi to the Board of Adjustment Alternate 2 position for a two year term.  
The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
8. Discuss and provide direction to staff regarding the City’s Code of Ordinances, 

Section 3.04.004 Construction Site Maintenance to create a time frame that roll off 
containers (dumpsters) may be on a construction site, consider making roll off 
containers part of a franchise agreement for solid waste disposal, or consider 
registering contractors to provide solid waste collection throughout the city with a 
required fee schedule for the service.  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation discussing concerns with the 
amount of time that dumpsters remain on construction sites and current code requirements 
related to the number of days a dumpster may be placed on site before construction begins.  Mr. 
Hilbourn also discussed the use of franchise agreements where the City would contract with one 
company that supplies all dumpsters for residential and commercial projects.  
 
The City Council discussed rates associated with franchise agreements and the concern with 
larger trucks tearing up the roadways. The City Council was not in favor of taking part in a 
franchise agreement for dumpsters.  



4 
 

 
The City Council directed staff to amend the Code of Ordinances changing the amount of time in 
which dumpsters could be located on site before construction begins from 10 days to 21 days and 
prepare standards that also addressed the appearance of dumpsters.  

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
9. Executive Session. 
 
There was no Executive Session for this meeting.  
 
 
10. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:58p.m.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
APPROVED:         ATTEST: 

 
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor       Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

Planning and Zoning Agenda Request  
April 07, 2016  

Agenda Item:    
 
Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00835 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances, Section 
14.01.004, Subsection B, Definitions creating a new definition for Nursing Home Facility. 
 
 A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 B. Conduct Public Hearing 
 C. Take Action 
 
Background Information:  
 
To better clarify the meaning of Nursing Home, a new definition is being proposed titled Nursing 
Home Facility.  This definition will replace the term retirement home/nursing home and will 
include assisted living centers and long term care facilities. The proposed definition reads as 
follows: 
 

Nursing Home Facility (also termed skilled nursing facility, convalescent home, 
assisted living or long term care facility).  A facility providing primarily in-
patient health care, personal care or rehabilitative services over a long period 
of time to persons chronically ill, aged, or disabled who need ongoing health 
supervision and such facilities comply with the required state licensing, if any.  

 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   
 
1. Ordinance 2016-04-00835 
2. Public Notice 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission, by unanimous vote, recommended to create a new 
definition for Nursing Home Facility as defined above.  
 
Motion:    
 
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00835 amending the City’s Code 
of Ordinances, Section 14.01.004, Subsection B, Definitions creating a new definition for 
Nursing Home Facility. 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-04-00835 
Approved:  April 7, 2016 1 

ORDINANCE # 2016-04-00835 
[ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER 14 “ZONING”] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE LUCAS CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 14 TITLED “ZONING” BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE 14.01 TITLED “GENERAL PROVISIONS” BY 
AMENDING DIVISION 1 TITLED “GENERALLY” BY AMENDING 
SECTION 14.01.004 TITLED “DEFINITIONS” BY AMENDING 
SUBSECTION (b) BY ADDING A NEW DEFINITION FOR “NURSING 
HOME FACILITY”; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF 
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City Council 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with reference to the 
granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by publication and 
otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, and 
the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said zoning change should 
be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, is hereby amended by 
amending Chapter 14 titled “Zoning” by amending Article 14.01 titled “General Provisions” by 
amending Division 1 titled “Generally” by amending Section 14.04.004(b) titled “Definitions”, to 
read as follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 14 
 

ZONING 
 

ARTICLE 14.01   GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Division 1.   Generally 
 

. . .  
 
Section 14.01.004 Definitions 
 
. . .  



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-04-00835 
Approved:  April 7, 2016 2 

 
(b) Definitions. 
 
. . .  
 
Nonconforming.  A building, structure, or use of land lawfully occupied at the time of the effective 
date of this chapter or amendments thereto, and which does not conform to the use of the 
regulations of the district in which it is situated. 
 
Noxious matter.  A material which is capable of causing injury to living organisms by chemical 
reaction or is capable of causing detrimental effects upon the physical or economic well-being or 
comfort of humans. 
 
Nursing home facility (also termed skilled nursing facility, convalescent home, assisted living or 
long term care facility.  A facility providing primarily in-patient health care, personal care or 
rehabilitative services over a long period of time to persons chronically ill, aged, or disabled who 
need ongoing health supervision and such facilities comply with the required state licensing, if 
any.  
 
Occupancy.  The use or intended use of the land or building by proprietors or tenants. 
 
Office, general business or professional.  An establishment providing administrative, business, 
executive, management or professional services, but not involving medical or dental services or 
the sale of merchandise, except as incidental to a permitted use. 
 
. . . ” 
 
Section 2. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of 
said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as amended, 
and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue 
shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-04-00835 
Approved:  April 7, 2016 3 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7th DAY OF APRIL 2016. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(02-22-16/75654) 
 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, March 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. and 
City Council will conduct a second public hearing on Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider changes to the City’s Code of Ordinances 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
A definition for retirement homes: Nursing home facility (also termed skilled nursing facility, 
convalescent home, assisted living or long term care facility.  A facility providing primarily 
in-patient health care, personal care or rehabilitative services over a long period of time 
to persons chronically ill, aged, or disabled who need ongoing health supervision and 
such facilities comply with the required state licensing, if any.  
.  
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable 
to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention:  City Secretary, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 
and it will be presented at the Hearing. If you have any questions about the above hearing you may 
contact jhilbourn@lucastexas.us. 
 
  
  
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

City Council Agenda Request  
April 07, 2016  

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Consider the request by James Roberts on behalf of Logan Ford Ranch Estates for preliminary 
plat approval, being a replat of Lot 1 of Ford’s Cattle Ranch totaling 69.019 acres with Phase 1 
consisting of 11 lots, containing 31.897 acres with one remaining lot of 37.122 acres. The 
property is located at the northeast corner of East Winningkoff Road and Welborn Lane.  
 
Background Information:  
 
This property is currently zoned R-2 and has an approved Development Agreement that gives 
consideration to lot frontage on two of the lots. There are very few improvements proposed with 
this development except for road repairs called out in the approved Development Agreement. 
There are two existing ponds that will be used for detention and all roads and water mains are in 
place so the improvements will consist of running lateral water services to each lot, and electric 
utilities. The proposed preliminary plat conforms to all the City’s rules and regulations. 

 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   
 
1. Proposed plat 
2. Water plan 
3. Electric plan 
4. Area map 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission, by unanimous vote, recommended to approve the 
preliminary plat for Fords Cattle Ranch as proposed.  
 
Motion:    
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request by James Roberts on behalf of Logan Ford Ranch 
Estates for preliminary plat approval for Phase 1, being a replat of Lot 1 of Ford’s Cattle Ranch 
totaling 69.019 acres for the property located at the northeast corner of East Winningkoff Road 
and Welborn Lane.  
 











FORD CATTLE RANCH

Phase 2 Phase 1

W
EL

B
O

R
N

 L
A

N
E



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

City Council Agenda Request  
April 07, 2016  

Agenda Item:    
 
Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00836 amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3, 
Section 3.01.011 Construction Site Maintenance to provide regulations for roll-off containers 
used on construction sites. 
 
Background Information:  
 
To address concerns related to roll-off containers remaining on site when construction has been 
halted or commenced, Staff is proposing to amend the Code of Ordinances by adding the 
following requirements:  
 

1. Roll-off containers may be delivered 21 days in advance of the start of construction;  
2. Roll-off containers must be removed from the construction site if work is abandoned for 

greater than ten business days;  
3. Roll-off containers must be free from graffiti and in reasonable condition.  

 
The existing Code of Ordinances reads as follows:  
 
Sec. 3.01.011     Construction site maintenance 

(a)     As a condition of receiving a permit for construction under this article, the owner and/or 
contractor shall place and maintain a minimum 20-cubic yard covered commercial roll-off 
container during the construction on the site subject of such permit. Prior to final inspection and/or 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy, such roll-off container shall be removed and its contents 
disposed of in accordance with state and/or local laws. 

(b)     The city council may by resolution establish such fee as it deems appropriate for the 
placement and/or maintenance of any roll-off container under this article. 

The proposed changes to the Code of Ordinances are highlighted below:  

Sec. 3.01.011     Construction site maintenance 

(a)     As a condition of receiving a permit for construction under this article, the owner and/or 
contractor shall place and maintain a minimum 20-cubic yard covered commercial roll-off 
container free from graffiti and in reasonable condition during the construction on the site subject 
of such permit. The roll off container may be set a maximum of twenty one days prior to the start 
of construction and must be removed prior to final inspection and/or issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy, such roll-off container shall be removed and its contents disposed of in accordance 
with state and/or local laws. If for any reason construction is abandoned or stopped for a period 
greater than ten business days such roll-off container shall be removed and its contents disposed 
of in accordance with state and/or local laws. 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

City Council Agenda Request  
April 07, 2016  

(b)     The city council may by resolution establish such fee as it deems appropriate for the 
placement and/or maintenance of any roll-off container under this article. 
 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   

1. Ordinance 2016-04-00836 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
N/A. 
 
Motion:    
 
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2016-04-00836 amending the Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 3, Section 3.01.011 Construction Site Maintenance providing regulations 
for roll-off containers used on construction sites as outlined in the referenced ordinance.  



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-04-00836 Amending Chapter 3 “Building Regulations” 
Approved:  April 7, 2016  -1- 

ORDINANCE 2016-04-00836 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 3] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE LUCAS CODE OF ORDINANCES BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 3 TITLED “BUILDING REGULATIONS” BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE 3.01 TITLED “GENERAL PROVISIONS” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 
3.01.11 TITLED “CONSTRUCTION SITE MAINTENANCE” TO PROVIDE 
REGULATIONS FOR ROLL-OFF CONTAINERS USED ON CONSTRUCTION SITES; 
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, is hereby amended by 
amending Chapter 3 titled “Building Regulations” by amending Article 3.01 titled “General 
Provisions” by adding a new section 3.01.11 titled “Construction Site Maintenance”, to read as 
follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 3 
 

BUILDING REGULATIONS 
 

ARTICLE 3.01  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

. . .  
 

Sec. 3.01.011  Construction site maintenance 
 
(a) As a condition of receiving a permit for construction under this article, the owner and/or 
contractor shall place and maintain a minimum 20-cubic yard covered commercial roll-off 
container free from graffiti and in reasonable condition during the construction on the site subject 
of such permit. The roll off container may be set a maximum of twenty-one (21) days prior to the 
start of construction, and must be removed prior to final inspection and/or issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy.  Such roll-off container shall be removed and its contents disposed of in accordance 
with state and/or local laws. If, for any reason, construction is abandoned or stopped for a period 
greater than ten (10) business days, such roll-off container shall be removed and its contents 
disposed of in accordance with state and/or local laws. 
 
(b) The city council may by resolution establish such fee as it deems appropriate for the 
placement and/or maintenance of any roll-off container under this article.” 
 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-04-00836 Amending Chapter 3 “Building Regulations” 
Approved:  April 7, 2016  -2- 

Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of said 
Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of this 
Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or held to 
be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for the in the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances, as amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum 
of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7th DAY OF APRIL 2016. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(03-28-2016/76167) 
       
 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

April 7, 2016 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider calling a special City Council meeting for the purpose of canvassing the May 7, 2016 
election results.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The time frame in which to canvass the results from the May 7, 2016 election is May 10 through 
May 18.  However, the last day to receive ballots from outside the United States is May 12.  In 
order to account for all votes during the election, it is recommended that the City Council hold 
their special meeting to canvass the election results either Monday, May 16 or Tuesday, May 17 
at 8:00 a.m. or a time that is convenient for the City Council members present.   
 
Texas Election Code, Section 67.004(a) states that for the purpose of canvassing a city election, 
only two members of the City Council are needed to constitute a quorum and conduct the special 
meeting.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends calling a Special Meeting to canvass the election on either May 16 or 
May 17 at 8:00 a.m. 
 
Motion:  
 
I move to approve/deny calling a special City Council meeting for ________, 2016 at _______ 
a.m./p.m. for the purpose of canvassing the May 7, 2016 election results.  
 

 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

April 7, 2016 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Executive Session:  An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 04-07-2016 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Regular Meeting
	April 7, 2016
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular City Council Meeting will be held on Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As au...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders ...
	Consent Agenda
	All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.
	Public Hearings
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	02a -Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month May 2016 Proclamation
	03 - Consent Agenda
	03a - 03-17-2016 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 17, 2016
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.


	04 - Nursing Home cs
	04a - Ordinance 2016-04-00835 Nursing Home Definition
	04b - Public Notice Retirmenet home
	05 - Logan Ford Ranch cs
	05a - Preliminary Plat
	05b - Water Meter Plan
	05c - Electric Plan
	05d - Area Map of Logan Ford Ranch Estates
	06 -Roll off containers cs
	06a - Ordinance 2016-04-00836 Building Regulations Adding Roll Off containers
	07 - special meeting to canvass election
	08 - Executive Session cs

